
Page 1 of 2 
 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING  
KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 

 
Meeting Date:      Wednesday, November 8, 2023 
Time:        5:30 p.m. 
Location:       District Administration Building   
Remote Viewing Access:     https://bit.ly/45UrsV1 
Remote Public Comment Sign-Up Form:  https://bit.ly/3dn9dyk 
Interpretación al español estará disponible.  
 

REVISED AGENDA  
 
1. Call to Order – 5:30 PM       RON MABRY 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Special Recognition 

A. Native American Heritage Month DR. TRACI PIERCE 
B. Foreign Exchange Students BJ WILSON 
C. Mr. Ron Mabry and Ms. Diane Sundvik DR. TRACI PIERCE 

  
4. Communications from Parents, Staff, and District Residents 
 
5. Consent Items 
 Approval of Board Minutes 

A. Minutes of School Board Meeting October 25, 2023 
 

Human Resources Reports  
A. Personnel Actions – Certificated, Classified, and Extracurricular 

 
 Business Office Items 

A. Budget Status Report Year Ending August 31, 2023 
B. Payroll and Vouchers Ending August 31, 2023 

 
6. Superintendent/Board Member Report 
  
7. Reports and Discussions 

A. Communities in Schools     DR. TRACI PIERCE 
                LUPE MARES  

Executive Director, Communities in Schools  
B. Legislative Priorities           DR. TRACI PIERCE 

 
 
   

https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fbit.ly%2F45UrsV1&data=05%7C01%7Cpatty.lord%40ksd.org%7C12d7508e36e74562821b08dbd971df6e%7C00948c2509684d128618b9e148ccfe77%7C0%7C0%7C638342855325317734%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=nCEM061sE1zr0BF6Jw3C9d5iSTcHWExGBD2Pf6x7TTY%3D&reserved=0
https://bit.ly/3dn9dyk


KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 
DR. TRACI PIERCE 
SECRETARY OF THE BOARD 

Page 2 of 2 

8. Unfinished Business 
None 

 
9. New Business 

A. Policy No. 2166 INSTRUCTION: Highly Capable Programming                                        
                                                                                       ALYSSA ST. HILAIRE  

B. Policy No. 3131 STUDENTS: Out-of-District (Nonresident or Choice) Student 
Transfers MATT SCOTT 

C. Policy No. 3132 STUDENTS: In-District Transfers – Attendance Boundaries 
(Resident Students) 

D. Resolution No. 1, 2023 – 2024: Collection of Admin Refund Levy For 2024 
 VIC ROBERTS 

10. Next Meeting Agenda 
A. Officer Elections 
B. Student Goal Report: All Students are Ready for Their Future 
C. 2022-23 Financial Closeout 
D. Tri Tech Skills Center 
E. Healthy Youth Survey 
F. Policy No. 2314 INSTRUCTION: Use of Outside Media Resources in the 

Classroom 
 

11. Executive Session (Approximately 30 minutes) 
A. Per RCW 42.30.110 (f) Complaint.  
 

12. Other Business as Authorized by Law 
 
13. Adjourn 

 
 



 KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 
 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

 Administration Building  
October 25, 2023 

 
 M I N U T E S 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
 

Board Members:  Michael Connors, President of the Board; Ron Mabry, Vice President 
of the Board; Diane Sundvik, Legislative Representative of the Board; Micah Valentine, 
Board Member; Gabe Galbraith, Board Member; and Dr. Traci Pierce, Superintendent 
and Secretary of the Board. 
 
Cabinet Members: Dr. Doug Christensen, Associate Superintendent of Human 
Resources; Matt Scott, Assistant Superintendent of K-12 Education; Alyssa St. Hilaire, 
Assistant Superintendent of Teaching and Learning; Vic Roberts, Executive Director of 
Business Operations; Robyn Chastain, Executive Director of Communications and Public 
Relations; Ron Cone, Executive Director of Information Technology. 
 
Excused: Mallory Dupaquier, Student Representative to the Board 

Annie Maltos, Student Board Member-Elect 
 
Other Guest(s):   Amy Strege, Program Manager, Communities in Schools 

Katie Toth, Student Support Coordinator, Communities in Schools 
Erin Lee, Educational Program Director, The Children’s Reading 
Foundation of Mid-Columbia 
Leanne Luehrs-Purcell, Executive Director, The Children’s Reading 
Foundation of Mid-Columbia 
Megan Biever, Principal, Sunset View Elementary School  
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
 President Michael Connors called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. and led the Pledge of 

Allegiance with approximately 42 online and in-person staff and guests in attendance. 
 
 Motion by Diane Sundvik to excuse Student Representative to the Board Mallory Dupaquier. 
 
 Seconded by Gabe Galbraith. 
 
  Roll call vote:  Mr. Connors  Yes 
     Mr. Mabry  Yes 
     Ms. Sundvik  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM PARENTS, STAFF, AND RESIDENTS 
  
 None   
 



Minutes 
October 25, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 
CONSENT ITEMS 
 
 Motion by Diane Sundvik to approve the consent items as presented. 
 
 Seconded by Ron Mabry. 
 
  Roll call vote:  Mr. Connors  Yes 
     Mr. Mabry  Yes 
     Ms. Sundvik  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0. 
 
 The consent items were as follows: 
 

• Minutes of Regular Board Meeting October 11, 2023 
• Personnel Actions – Certificated, Classified, and Extracurricular 
• School Improvement Plans 

 
SUPERINTENDENT/BOARD MEMBER REPORT 
 

Superintendent Dr. Traci Pierce reported visiting several schools within the district to 
meet with leaders, discuss student achievement data, and observe classroom activities, 
expressing her admiration for the work being done. She acknowledged October as 
National Principals Month, read a proclamation from Governor Inslee, and recognized 
the excellent principal leaders within the district. She also updated the Board on a 
student’s request during a previous Board meeting to change the policy regarding 
showing PG-13 movies. Dr. Pierce investigated neighboring district policies requiring 
parent permission for all movie showings; the Board could determine whether to put the 
policy on a future Board meeting agenda for discussion and potential amendments. 
Additionally, Dr. Pierce requested direction from the Board regarding timelines for 
legislative priorities and meetings with legislators, suggesting adding legislative items to 
the meeting agenda for discussion. 

 
 Motion by Diane Sundvik to add Legislative Items to tonight’s agenda under “Other 

Business as Authorized by Law.” 
 
Seconded by Gabe Galbraith. 

 
   Roll call vote:  Mr. Connors  Yes 
     Mr. Mabry  Yes 
     Ms. Sundvik  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0. 
 

Board Member Gabe Galbraith reported attending all three high school College and Career 



Minutes 
October 25, 2023 
Page 3 
 
 

Expos. He had an initial meeting with Pacific Research Institute, where he was asked to 
speak on “How to be an Effective School Board Member” on November 15 at the Hilton in 
Bellevue. Mr. Galbraith added concerns about safety issues at Kamiakin High School with 
all the lockdowns due to police activity around the apartments across from the school. 

  
 Board Member Micah Valentine reported attending all three high school College and 

Career Expos. 
 
 Board Member Diane Sundvik reported attending the WSSDA Networking Webinar, 

Kamiakin and Southridge College and Career Expo’s, and Phoenix Family Information 
Night. She also reported holding coffee meetings with constituents and fielding multiple 
emails and phone calls regarding School Board candidates. 

 
 Board Member Ron Mabry shared that Pasco School District builds a house yearly and 

asked about possible guest appearances. 
 
REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS  
 

Matt Scott, Assistant Superintendent of K-12 Education, introduced the goal report 
focused on the strategic goal: All community members are important collaborators. He 
stated that the information would focus on the Children’s Reading Foundation of the 
Mid-Columbia and Communities in Schools Benton-Franklin.  
 

 Children’s Reading Foundation of the Mid-Columbia 
Matt Scott, Assistant Superintendent of K-12 Education, introduced Leanne Luehrs-
Purcell, Executive Director, and Erin Lee, Educational Programs Director for The 
Children’s Reading Foundation of the Mid-Columbia, who presented the annual report on 
Ready! For Kindergarten and Team Read. The Ready! For Kindergarten school readiness 
program provides parents and caregivers with tools and activities to optimize children’s 
natural curiosity and nurture learning and development. Team Read provides one-on-one 
reading tutoring to kindergarten-3rd graders at nine elementary schools in the Kennewick 
School District. Volunteers tutor the same student throughout the school year, tutoring 30 
minutes daily, twice weekly. 

 
 Communities in Schools 
 Matt Scott, Assistant Superintendent of K-12 Education, introduced Amy Strege, 

Program Manager, and Katie Toth, Student Support Coordinator for Communities in 
Schools Benton-Franklin (CISBF), and Megan Biever, Principal at Sunset View 
Elementary School. Ms. Strege presented data on Communities in Schools in the 
Kennewick School District. Principal Biever and Ms. Wright shared how Communities in 
Schools work with students one-on-one to support academics, provide for some of their 
basic needs, and support teachers and counselors. Communities in Schools is in eleven 
schools in the Kennewick School District. 

 
 Highly Capable Update 

Alyssa St. Hilaire, Assistant Superintendent of Teaching & Learning, presented the 
current KSD program model and data. She shared the 2022-23 KSD program review 



Minutes 
October 25, 2023 
Page 4 
 
 

process and recommendations, followed by 2023-24 Universal Screening and Equitable 
Enrollment Practices. 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

None 
  
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 Policy No. 2417, INSTRUCTION: Elective Credit for Paid Work Experience 
 Alyssa St. Hilaire presented a new policy based on HB1658 authorizing high school 

students to earn credit for paid work experience.  
 

 Motion by Diane Sundvik to approve Policy No. 2417, INSTRUCTION: Elective Credit for 
Paid Work Experience for the first and second reading.  

 
Seconded by Micah Valentine. 

 
   Roll call vote:  Mr. Connors  Yes 
     Mr. Mabry  Yes 
     Ms. Sundvik  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0. 

 
Matt Scott presented updates to three policies regarding enrollment around transfer requests 
for better clarification. 
 
Policy No. 3130, STUDENTS: Release of Resident Students 
Motion by Ron Mabry to accept Policy No. 3130, STUDENTS: Release of Resident 
Students for first and second reading. 

 
Seconded by Diane Sundvik. 

 
   Roll call vote:  Mr. Connors  Yes 
     Mr. Mabry  Yes 
     Ms. Sundvik  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0. 
 

Policy No. 3131, STUDENTS: Out-of-District (Nonresident or Choice) Student Transfers  
 Motion by Gabe Galbraith to approve Policy No. 3131, STUDENTS: Out-of-District 

(Nonresident or Choice) Student Transfers as presented for first and second reading. 
 

Seconded by Diane Sundvik. 
 



Minutes 
October 25, 2023 
Page 5 
 
 
   Roll call vote:  Mr. Connors  Yes 
     Mr. Mabry  Yes 
     Ms. Sundvik  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0. 

 
Policy No. 3132, STUDENTS: In-District Transfers – Attendance Boundaries (Resident 
Students) 

 Motion by Diane Sundvik to approve Policy No. 3132, STUDENTS: In-District Transfers – 
Attendance Boundaries (Resident Students), for first and second reading. 

 
Seconded by Micah Valentine. 

 
   Roll call vote:  Mr. Connors  Yes 
     Mr. Mabry  Yes 
     Ms. Sundvik  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0. 

 
Policy No. 1225, BOARD OF DIRECTORS: School Director Legislative Program 
Dr. Pierce presented a new policy modeled after the WSSDA model. 
 

 Motion by Ron Mabry to accept new Policy No. 1225, BOARD OF DIRECTORS: School 
Director Legislative Program, as presented for first and second reading. 

 
Seconded by Micah Valentine. 

 
   Roll call vote:  Mr. Connors  Yes 
     Mr. Mabry  Yes 
     Ms. Sundvik  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0. 

 
Policy No. 1230 BOARD OF DIRECTORS: Legislative Representative 
Dr. Pierce presented amendments to the policy, aligning with the WSSDA model. 
 

 Motion by Ron Mabry to approve Policy No. 1230, BOARD OF DIRECTORS: Legislative 
Representative as presented for first and second reading. 

 
Seconded by Diane Sundvik. 

 
   Roll call vote:  Mr. Connors  Yes 
     Mr. Mabry  Yes 
     Ms. Sundvik  Yes 



Minutes 
October 25, 2023 
Page 6 
 
 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0. 
 
NEXT MEETING AGENDA 
 
 The Board reviewed items for the next meeting agenda:  
 

A. Study Session: Financial Literacy 
B. Board Legislative Priorities 
C. Student Goal Report: All Students Are Ready for Their Future 

  
OTHER BUSINESS AS AUTHORIZED BY LAW. 
 

Dr. Pierce shared concerns regarding the timing of adopting the legislative priorities 
document and meeting with legislators. She suggested that the Board review the current 
document, make any adjustments, and approve it at the next meeting. Per the Board’s 
direction, Dr. Pierce will schedule two tentative dates to meet with legislators before the 
legislative session starts.  

  
 There being no further business, the Board adjourned at 8:17 p.m. 
 
 
_____________________________________ _____________________________ 
RECORDING SECRETARY PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 SECRETARY OF THE BOARD 
 
Approved:  November 8, 2023 



CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL
ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE, TRANSFERS AND TERMINATIONS

Exhibit A: Lists new employment contracts, requests for leaves of absence, and terminations which have occurred for certificated 
employees since the last meeting of the Board of Directors.

Name School Position Justification FTE Date

Rob Thomas District Nurse Requesting .40 LOA 1.0 to .60
1/3/24 - 
6/12/24

Sarah Price DHMS Teacher - MS Requesting 1.0 LOA 1.0
11/30/23-

1/2/24
Chelsey Bowers Hawthorne Teacher - Elem Requesting LOA (1st) 1.0 Eff. 3/7/2024

Jessica Dabling SrHS Teacher - HS Requesting temp. LOA 1.0
11/30/23-

1/6/24

David Pierce Park MS Teacher - MS 1.0 Eff. 12/31/23
RESIGNATIONS

IN DISTRICT 
TRANSFERS

DATE:    Wednesday,November 8, 2023

EXHIBIT A 

NEW POSITONS

REHIRE
REPLACEMENT

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

LEAVE OF ABSENCE 
REPLACEMENT

RETIREMENTS

11/3/2023 Page 1



CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS

Name School Position Justification Hours Date

Leticia Torres 

Cervantes
Amistad Cook Program Need 6.0 11/6/2023

Miranda Francis Kennewick Para/SS/LifeSkills 1-1 Student Need 6.5 11/3/2023

Agnieszka O'Neil Chinook Para/SS/LifeSkills Program Need 6.5 11/2/2023

Tiereny Personett Vista Elementary Secretary Replaces Teresa Stephens 6.0 11/1/2023

Evelyne Rebeles 

Magallon
Fuerza Para/FP/BE/Bilingual Replaces Maya Mendoza 5.5 10/27/2023

Amera Whitaker Westgate Para/FP/BE
Replaces Zachary 

Morrison
6.0 10/31/2023

Fatima Al Rubai Kennewick Cook Replaces Edid Meraz 3.0 11/7/2023

Bianca Noah Kennewick Para/Career Center Replaces Cassandra Miller 6.5 11/20/2023

Kai Dygert Phoenix
Para/Success 

Coordinator/Bilingual
Replaces Vanessa Alviso 7.5 11/13/2023

Kristy Landon Chinook Para/SS/LifeSkills
Replaces Stephanie 

Steinwand
6.5 11/13/2023

Koren Harrison Human Resources HR Generalist Replaces Sarah Vines 8.0 11/14/2023

Ashleigh Williams 

Guzman
Amon Creek Cook

Replaces Stephanie 

Persinger
6.0 11/6/2023

Kelsey Grimes Hawthorne Para/FP/LAP Replaces Aileen Sanchez 6.0 11/6/2023

Stephanie Steinwand Chinook Para/SS/LifeSkills 6.5 11/7/2023

Berenice Barragan Washington Para/FP/LAP/BE 6.5 10/23/2023

James Long Transportation Bus Driver 5.08 10/30/2023

Ashley Garland ECEAP Para/ECEAP 8.0 11/15/2023

Brett Wilbur Washington Para/SS/Tier II Behavior 6.0 11/17/2023

Paula Teal Human Resources HR Certificated Secretary 8.0 12/1/2023

EXHIBIT B: Lists new employment personnel actions and terminations for classified employees that have occurred since the last meeting of the Board of Directors

EXHIBIT B

DATE: November 8, 2023

REPLACEMENT

RESIGNATION

REHIRE

NEW POSITONS

11/8/2023 AM



CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS

Flynn McPheron Highlands Para/SS/LifeSkills Until 11/21/2023 6.5 10/30/2023

Sean Holloway Transportation Bus Driver Until 11/30/2023 5.08 11/6/2023

Alma Meraz Amistad Attendance Secretary Until 01/03/2024 6.0 11/9/2023

Rhea Bowerly Chinook Cook 7.5 12/20/2023

RETURN FROM LOA

TERMINATION

LAYOFF

RESIGNED FROM LOA

RETIREMENT

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

11/8/2023 AM



Page 1 
 

 
EXTRACURRICULAR 

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS 
Exhibit C:  Lists new employment contracts and terminations that have occurred for supplemental contracts since the last meeting of the Board of Directors. 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  Wednesday, November 8, 2023. 
 

EXHIBIT C 
SUPPLEMENTAL CONTRACTS 

ELECTIONS AND TERMINATIONS 
NAME SCHOOL POSITION JUSTIFICATION HOURS DATE 

NEW POSITIONS      2023-2024 Sc Yr 
REPLACEMENTS       

 Robert Fiochhi Kennewick HS Head Girls Tennis Replaces Steve Buckingham  
2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Dave Weensveen Highlands MS Asst Girls Basketball Replaces Seth Powers  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Corey Nelson Highlands MS Asst Boys Basketball Replaces Seth Powers  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Robert Martin Desert Hills MS Asst Boys Basketball Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Shaun Suss Desert Hills MS Asst Boys Basketball Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Nicole Chelin Desert Hills MS Asst Boys Baskettball Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Brad Boyce Horse Heaven Hills Asst Boys Basketball Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Jesse Sandbeck Horse Heaven Hills Asst Boys Basketbal Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Jose Mendoza Southridge HS Asst Girls Wrestling Replaces Asia Borisch  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Brian Arroyo Kennewick HS Asst Boys Basketball Replaces Gerardo Tovar Mendoaa  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Shannon Fetterolf Horse Heaven Hills Assistant Dance Replaces Katelyn Fetterolf – Emer Hire  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Noel Orozco Kamiakin HS Asst Boys Wrestling New Position (.25 FTE)  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Ted Homme Southridge HS Asst Football Resigned  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

LEAVE OF ABSENCE NAME SCHOOL POSITION COMMENTS DATE 
     2023-2024 Sc Yr 
      
RESIGNATIONS NAME SCHOOL POSITION COMMENTS   

 Thomas Crosier KENNEWICK HIGH SCHOOL Assistant Girls Soccer Resigned 2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Jacqueline Brown Kamiakin HS Assistant Track Resigned 2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Ramiro Gonzalez Southridge HS Head Boys Wrestling Resigned 2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Belen Chavez-Acosta Park MS Assistant Dance No Show 2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Laura Follett Kamiakin HS Assistant Gymnastics Resigned 2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Paul Bates Kennewick HS Assistant Wrestling Resigned 2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 

































2024 Legislative 
Priorities

November 8, 2023 



2024 Session 
Information 

• Begins on Monday, January 8
• 60-day supplemental session
• Supplemental budget year (smaller 

changes)
• 2024 is an election year
• State revenues continue to exceed 

projections



2023 
Legislative 
Priorities 



2024 
WSSDA 

Priorities 



2024 
WASA 

Priorities 



2023 
Legislative 
Priorities 



Board Discussion  

Does the Board want to make changes/updates 
to the legislative priorities document for 2024?



Approval of 2024 
Legislative Priorities 



Legislative Page Program



Legislative Page Program
• The Washington State Legislature has one of the finest page programs in the country. 

Each year, hundreds of students from across Washington State have the opportunity 
to take part in the legislative process and observe the Legislature and other branches 
of state government in action.

• Pages are sponsored by legislators and serve for one week during the legislative 
session, which runs January-April in odd numbered years and January-March in even 
numbered years. 

• Pages spend their week learning about the legislative process while distributing 
materials throughout the Capitol Campus, assisting offices, delivering messages, 
working on the House or Senate Floor, and presenting the colors at the opening of 
the day's legislative session. Pages also spend time each day in Page School learning 
about all aspects of state government and legislative process.



Legislative Page Program
Requirements:

• Have parent or guardian permission

• Receive a recommendation from a teacher and their principal

• Be at least 14 years of age and have not reached their 17th birthday

Benefits: 

• Pages earn a stipend of $50 per day and can also earn community service hours

• “In all honesty before coming here, I had no interest in government or politics. After 
this fantastic experience, I can actually see myself doing something here in the 
capitol. The Page School hearings were definitely my favorite part…It was such a cool 
experience sitting in the chairs and speaking into the microphones. I really felt like 
my vote made a big difference; it seemed as though I was doing something 
important. I really enjoyed the opportunity of being both the chair and a committee 
member…and being able to verbalize my opinion…I loved it."

  — Asia



Scholarship Program 
Gina Grant Bull Memorial Legislative Page Scholarship Program 

• During her lifetime, Gina Grant Bull served the state of Washington in both the Legislature and at the 
community level. In every role, from Legislative Assistant to House Page Supervisor to teacher to coach, Gina 
went out of her way to make everyone feel welcomed and a valued member of the institutional family.

• The Page Program and the pages held a special place in Gina’s heart. Her mission, before she unexpectedly 
passed away in 2016, was to extend this opportunity to all students in Washington State regardless of 
economic status. This scholarship honors her service and dedication.

• This goal of this scholarship is to encourage all students, regardless of income level, to participate in the Page 
Program by helping offset the expense of traveling to and staying in Olympia for the week. By reducing the 
financial burden and raising awareness of the program, the legislature hopes to make participation in this 
great educational opportunity economically feasible for more students across Washington State.

• The scholarship uses the Federal Free and Reduced-Priced Lunch Qualifications to assess need. Applicants 
must supply a copy of the letter of approval issued by the school district after the Free and Reduced Lunch 
application is processed. 

• Applying for the scholarship will not help or hurt the applicant's acceptance into the program. Scholarship 
applications must be received no later than one month prior to paging.



Application and More Information 

Applications open November 
1st each year. When applying, 
potential pages can select 
which weeks they are available 
to work.
https://leg.wa.gov/PageSchool/
Pages/default.aspx

https://leg.wa.gov/PageSchool/Pages/default.aspx
https://leg.wa.gov/PageSchool/Pages/default.aspx


  2166 
 
INSTRUCTION 
 
Highly Capable Programs 
 
In order to develop the abilities of each Highly Capable Program student, the district will offer a 
highly capable program that provides kindergarten through twelfth grade students who are selected 
for the program with access to basic education programming that accelerates learning and enhances 
instruction. The framework for such programs shall encompass, but not be limited to the following 
objectives: 
 

A. Expansion of academic attainments and intellectual skills; 
 

B. Stimulation of intellectual curiosity, independence and responsibility; 
 

C. Development of a positive attitude toward self and others; and 
 

D. Development of originality and creativity. 
 
 
The Board will annually approve the district’s highly capable plan including: the number of 
students the district expects to serve by grade level; the district’s plan to identify students 
universally screen all students; a description of the highly capable program goals; a description 
of the services the program will offer; an instructional program description; a description of 
ongoing professional development for highly capable program and general education staff; 
program evaluation; a fiscal report; and assurances that the district is legally compliant. 
 
The superintendent shall establish procedures consistent with state guidelines for implementing 
universal referral, screening, assessment, identification, and placement of highly capably 
students. selection of children of demonstrated achievement or potential ability in terms of 
general intellectual ability, academic aptitude and creative or productive thinking. These 
procedures will include prioritizing equitable identification of low-income students; use of 
universal screening for identification and placement decisions, multiple objective criteria and 
multiple pathways for identification; use of local norms, unless more restrictive than national 
norms; use of subjective measures only to support identification; and use of screening and 
assessment in the student’s native language (if available) or nonverbal assessment. 
 
 
Legal Reference: RCW 28A.185.030 Programs – Authority of local school districts – 

Selection of students.  
   WAC 392-170 Special Service Program--Highly Capable Students 
 
 
Adopted:  April 28, 1993 
Amended: December 10, 2008 

https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.185.030
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=392-170


Amended: February 12, 2014 
Amended: December 5, 2018 
Amended: June 21, 2023 
Amended: November 8th, 2023 Formatted: Superscript



  2166 
 
INSTRUCTION 
 
Highly Capable Programs 
 
In order to develop the abilities of each Highly Capable Program student, the district will offer a 
highly capable program that provides kindergarten through twelfth grade students who are selected 
for the program with access to basic education programming that accelerates learning and enhances 
instruction. The framework for such programs shall encompass, but not be limited to the following 
objectives: 
 

A. Expansion of academic attainments and intellectual skills; 
 

B. Stimulation of intellectual curiosity, independence and responsibility; 
 

C. Development of a positive attitude toward self and others; and 
 

D. Development of originality and creativity. 
 
 
The Board will annually approve the district’s highly capable plan including: the number of 
students the district expects to serve by grade level; the district’s plan to universally screen all 
students; a description of the highly capable program goals; a description of the services the 
program will offer; an instructional program description; a description of ongoing professional 
development for highly capable program and general education staff; program evaluation; a 
fiscal report; and assurances that the district is legally compliant. 
 
The superintendent shall establish procedures consistent with state guidelines for implementing 
universal referral, screening, assessment, identification, and placement of highly capably 
students. The procedures will include prioritizing equitable identification of low-income 
students; use of universal screening for identification and placement decisions; use of local 
norms, unless more restrictive than national norms; and use of screening and assessment in the 
student’s native language (if available) or nonverbal assessment. 
 
 
Legal Reference: RCW 28A.185.030 Programs – Authority of local school districts – 

Selection of students.  
   WAC 392-170 Special Service Program--Highly Capable Students 
 
 
Adopted:  April 28, 1993 
Amended: December 10, 2008 
Amended: February 12, 2014 
Amended: December 5, 2018 
Amended: June 21, 2023 

https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.185.030
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=392-170


Amended: November 8, 2023 



Page 1 of 2 

 
  3131 
STUDENTS 
 
Out-of-District (Nonresident or Choice) Student Transfers 
  
Kennewick School District may honor the request of parents or guardians to enroll children 
from districts other than those determined by residence.  Out-of-district transfers will be 
considered after all in-district transfers have been processed. The district is not required to 
accept out-of-district students.  Kennewick School District may accept or deny an 
application for out-of-district admission based on procedures established in Procedure 3131. 
 
The district will provide information regarding attendance area transfer options on the 
district website. 
 
Parents must submit a request for nonresident transfer annually through the online Choice 
Transfer Request Portal (CTRP) and must be resubmitted annually.  
 
Falsifying information, documents, or the failure to notify the district of changes in 
resident district status may result in the student(s) being withdrawn and returned to their 
attendance areas school. The student(s) will not be eligible to re-apply for transfer for one 
calendar year from the date of withdrawal from the Kennewick School District.  
 
Student excessive misconduct and/or chronic absenteeism may warrant a decision by the 
district to rescind an out of district transfer and return the student to their attendance area 
district. Such a decision will be made no later than the end of the current school year.  
Students will not have the out-of-district transfer rescinded during the current school year. 
 
The superintendent’s designee will provide all applicants with written notification of the 
approval or denial of a nonresident student’s enrollment application in a timely manner. If 
the student is admitted, the superintendent’s designee will notify the resident district and 
make necessary arrangements for the transfer of student records. 
 
If the application is denied, the superintendent’s designee will notify the parent of guardian 
in writing. The notification will include the reason(s) for denial and inform the parent or 
guardian of their right to appeal the district’s denial decision to: 
 

A. The district’s superintendent or designee or; 
B. The Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI) as detailed in 
RCW 28A.225.230. 

 
Athletic participation will be allowed if the student with an approved out of boundary 
transfer meets Washington Interscholastic Athletic Association (WIAA) eligibility 
requirements. 
 
 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or numbering

https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28a.225.230


Policy No. 3131 
 
Out-of-District (Nonresident or Choice) Student Transfers – Continued 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 

Existing cooperative agreements between school districts are not to be adversely affected by 
this policy. 
 
 
Legal Reference: RCW 28A.225.220 Adults, children from other districts, 

agreements for attending school – Tuition. 
   RCW 28A.225.225 Applications from school employees’ 

children, nonresident students, or students 
receiving home-based instruction to attend 
district school - Acceptance and rejection 
standards -Notification. 

   RCW  28A.225.240  Apportionment credit. 
   RCW   28A.225.290 Enrollment options information booklet. 
   RCW 28A.225.300 Enrollment options information to parents. 
   RCW  28A.225.280  Transfer students’ eligibility for 

extracurricular activities. 
   Chapter  392-137  WAC Finance - Nonresident Attendance 
 
 
Adopted: March 23, 1982 
Amended:        August 22, 2001 
Amended:        October 25, 2023 
Amended:        November 8, 2023 

https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28a.225.220
https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28a.225.225
https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.225.240#:%7E:text=If%20a%20student%20under%20the,shall%20be%20credited%20to%20the
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28a.225.290
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.225.300
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28a.225.280
https://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=392-137


Page 1 of 2 

 
  3131 
STUDENTS 
 
Out-of-District (Nonresident or Choice) Student Transfers 
  
Kennewick School District may honor the request of parents or guardians to enroll children 
from districts other than those determined by residence. Out-of-district transfers will be 
considered after all in-district transfers have been processed. The district is not required to 
accept out-of-district students. Kennewick School District may accept or deny an 
application for out-of-district admission based on procedures established in Procedure 3131. 
 
The district will provide information regarding attendance area transfer options on the 
district website. 
 
Parents must submit a request for nonresident transfer annually through the online Choice 
Transfer Request Portal (CTRP) and must be resubmitted annually.  
 
Falsifying information, documents, or the failure to notify the district of changes in 
resident district status may result in the student(s) being withdrawn and returned to their 
attendance areas school. The student(s) will not be eligible to re-apply for transfer for one 
calendar year from the date of withdrawal from the Kennewick School District.  
 
Student excessive misconduct and/or chronic absenteeism may warrant a decision by the 
district to rescind an out of district transfer and return the student to their attendance area 
district. Such a decision will be made no later than the end of the current school year.  
Students will not have the out-of-district transfer rescinded during the current school year. 
 
The superintendent’s designee will provide all applicants with written notification of the 
approval or denial of a nonresident student’s enrollment application in a timely manner. If 
the student is admitted, the superintendent’s designee will notify the resident district and 
make necessary arrangements for the transfer of student records. 
 
If the application is denied, the superintendent’s designee will notify the parent of guardian 
in writing. The notification will include the reason(s) for denial and inform the parent or 
guardian of their right to appeal the district’s denial decision to the Office of Superintendent 
of Public Instruction (OSPI) as detailed in RCW 28A.225.230. 
 
Athletic participation will be allowed if the student with an approved out of boundary 
transfer meets Washington Interscholastic Athletic Association (WIAA) eligibility 
requirements. 
 
Existing cooperative agreements between school districts are not to be adversely affected by 
this policy. 
 
 

https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28a.225.230


Policy No. 3131 
 
Out-of-District (Nonresident or Choice) Student Transfers – Continued 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 

Legal Reference: RCW 28A.225.220 Adults, children from other districts, 
agreements for attending school – Tuition. 

   RCW 28A.225.225 Applications from school employees’ 
children, nonresident students, or students 
receiving home-based instruction to attend 
district school - Acceptance and rejection 
standards -Notification. 

   RCW  28A.225.240  Apportionment credit. 
   RCW   28A.225.290 Enrollment options information booklet. 
   RCW 28A.225.300 Enrollment options information to parents. 
   RCW  28A.225.280  Transfer students’ eligibility for 

extracurricular activities. 
   Chapter  392-137  WAC Finance - Nonresident Attendance 
 
 
Adopted: March 23, 1982 
Amended:        August 22, 2001 
Amended:        October 25, 2023 
Amended:        November 8, 2023 

https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28a.225.220
https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28a.225.225
https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.225.240#:%7E:text=If%20a%20student%20under%20the,shall%20be%20credited%20to%20the
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28a.225.290
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.225.300
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28a.225.280
https://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=392-137


Page 1 of 2 

 
3132 

STUDENTS 
 
In-District Transfers - Attendance Boundaries (Resident Students) 
 
Kennewick School District is committed to maintaining equity in the quality of education in all 
schools and recognizes the importance of neighborhood schools. Students are assigned to 
attendance area schools according to Board-adopted geographic boundaries. A student’s legal 
residence, for attendance purposes, determines their attendance area school.   
 
Although school boundaries are established, parents may request an in-district transfer to allow 
their child to attend another school in the district. An in-district transfer may be requested for 
students enrolled in special programs provided that appropriate services and program space are 
available at the requested school. The district will establish procedures for accepting or denying 
in-district transfer requests. 
 
Students who are enrolled in an attendance area school and change physical residence during the 
school year will be allowed to attend that school through the end of the year and will be required 
to request an in-district transfer to continue attending.   
 
Once an in-district transfer is approved, the student will remain a student at the requested school 
unless the parent provides notice of intent to return to the attendance area school or requests 
transfer to another district school. High school students who request school transfer are subject to 
the Washington Interscholastic Activities Association’s eligibility rules. 
 
Each year by February 15, the district will establish space limitations for individual classes and 
grade levels at each building, beyond which, no incoming transfer student will be added. Should 
a student be granted a request to enroll outside of their attendance area school, the parents and 
district agree to continue the student until the student completes the highest grade at that level 
(elementary, middle, or high school) unless otherwise noted in this policy. Requests for 
continued enrollment will not be necessary unless there is a change in boundaries. When 
attendance area boundaries change, all resident transfers will be rescinded for the school year the 
boundary change takes effect and a new transfer request will be required. 
 
Transfers will be granted based on established criteria outlined in Procedure 3132. 
 
The district will not provide transportation for students transferring outside their attendance area 
school unless otherwise arranged. 
 
Falsifying information, documents, or the failure to notify the district of changes in district 
resident status may result in the student(s) being withdrawn and returned to their attendance 
areas school. The student(s) will not be eligible to re-apply for transfer for one calendar year 
from the date of withdrawal from the Kennewick School District.  
 
All transfer requests will be subject to resident transfer criteria; the prior attendance of a student 
or a student’s sibling(s) does not guarantee an in-district transfer will be accepted.  
 
 



In-District Transfers - Attendance Boundaries (Resident Students)– Continued 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Extracurricular Eligibility 
 
Eligibility for interscholastic activities for transfer students will be subject to rules adopted by 
the Washington Interscholastic Activities Association (WIAA). These rules are intended to 
discourage school shopping by athletes and recruiting by schools and can be found in R 3132. 
 
The district will provide information regarding attendance area transfer options on the district 
website. 
  
Appeals 
 
Requests denied due to lack of space are not subject to appeal. If the request for a resident 
student transfer is denied for reasons other than space, the superintendent or their 
designeeprincipal will notify the parent or guardian the reason for the denial of transfer and the 
right to appeal to the superintendent /or their designee. If the appeal is denied, the parent or 
guardian may petition the Board for review of the decision and to have a hearing before the 
Board. Following the hearing, the Board will make a The decision of the superintendent/designee 
shall be final decision. 
  
 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  RCW 28A.225.270  Intradistrict enrollment options policies. 
   RCW 28A.225.280  Transfer students’ eligibility for extracurricular 
      activities. 
   RCW 28A.225.300 Enrollment options information to parents. 
 
 
 
Adopted:  November 26, 1973 
Amended:  August 24, 2005 
Amended:  August 13, 2008 
Amended: April 22, 2009 
Amended: October 25, 2023 

https://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=28A.225.270
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=28A.225.280
https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.225.300


Page 1 of 2 

 
3132 

STUDENTS 
 
In-District Transfers - Attendance Boundaries (Resident Students) 
 
Kennewick School District is committed to maintaining equity in the quality of education in all 
schools and recognizes the importance of neighborhood schools. Students are assigned to 
attendance area schools according to Board-adopted geographic boundaries. A student’s legal 
residence, for attendance purposes, determines their attendance area school.   
 
Although school boundaries are established, parents may request an in-district transfer to allow 
their child to attend another school in the district. An in-district transfer may be requested for 
students enrolled in special programs provided that appropriate services and program space are 
available at the requested school. The district will establish procedures for accepting or denying 
in-district transfer requests. 
 
Students who are enrolled in an attendance area school and change physical residence during the 
school year will be allowed to attend that school through the end of the year and will be required 
to request an in-district transfer to continue attending.   
 
Once an in-district transfer is approved, the student will remain a student at the requested school 
unless the parent provides notice of intent to return to the attendance area school or requests 
transfer to another district school. High school students who request school transfer are subject to 
the Washington Interscholastic Activities Association’s eligibility rules. 
 
Each year by February 15, the district will establish space limitations for individual classes and 
grade levels at each building, beyond which, no incoming transfer student will be added. Should 
a student be granted a request to enroll outside of their attendance area school, the parents and 
district agree to continue the student until the student completes the highest grade at that level 
(elementary, middle, or high school) unless otherwise noted in this policy. Requests for 
continued enrollment will not be necessary unless there is a change in boundaries. When 
attendance area boundaries change, all resident transfers will be rescinded for the school year the 
boundary change takes effect and a new transfer request will be required. 
 
Transfers will be granted based on established criteria outlined in Procedure 3132. 
 
The district will not provide transportation for students transferring outside their attendance area 
school unless otherwise arranged. 
 
Falsifying information, documents, or the failure to notify the district of changes in district 
resident status may result in the student(s) being withdrawn and returned to their attendance 
areas school. The student(s) will not be eligible to re-apply for transfer for one calendar year 
from the date of withdrawal from the Kennewick School District.  
 
All transfer requests will be subject to resident transfer criteria; the prior attendance of a student 
or a student’s sibling(s) does not guarantee an in-district transfer will be accepted.  
 
 



In-District Transfers - Attendance Boundaries (Resident Students)– Continued 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Extracurricular Eligibility 
 
Eligibility for interscholastic activities for transfer students will be subject to rules adopted by 
the Washington Interscholastic Activities Association (WIAA). These rules are intended to 
discourage school shopping by athletes and recruiting by schools and can be found in R 3132. 
 
The district will provide information regarding attendance area transfer options on the district 
website. 
  
Appeals 
 
Requests denied due to lack of space are not subject to appeal. If the request for a resident 
student transfer is denied for reasons other than space, the principal will notify the parent or 
guardian the reason for the denial of transfer and the right to appeal to the superintendent 
/designee. The decision of the superintendent/designee shall be final. 
  
 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  RCW 28A.225.270  Intradistrict enrollment options policies. 
   RCW 28A.225.280  Transfer students’ eligibility for extracurricular 
      activities. 
   RCW 28A.225.300 Enrollment options information to parents. 
 
 
 
Adopted:  November 26, 1973 
Amended:  August 24, 2005 
Amended:  August 13, 2008 
Amended: April 22, 2009 
Amended: October 25, 2023 

https://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=28A.225.270
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=28A.225.280
https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.225.300


 
Kennewick School District #17, 1000 W. 4th Ave., Kennewick, WA 99336 
 
 
        Resolution No. 1 

2023 – 2024 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1, 2023-2024 
Collection of Admin Refund Levy For 2024 

 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Treasurer's Office has calculated property tax reductions that reduced 
past approved Kennewick School District levy collections and 
 
WHEREAS, the Admin Refund Levy to recover the lost tax dollars has been computed as 
$136,267.82 by the Benton County Treasurer, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Kennewick School District under RCW 84.69.18 is authorized to recover the tax 
dollars lost from the reductions, 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Kennewick School District Board of Directors 
approve the collection of Admin Refund Levy for 2024 in the amount of $136,267.82. 
 
Adopted and approved this 8th day of November 2023. 
 

 

ATTEST _____________________________ _______________________________ 
       Secretary, Board of Directors  President, Board of Directors 

         
            

       _______________________________ 
      Vice President, Board of Directors 

         
             
       _______________________________ 

      Member of the Board of Directors  
 
 

      _______________________________ 
       Member of the Board of Directors  
        

       
      _______________________________ 

       Member of the Board of Directors  


	11 08 23 Agenda School Board Meeting
	CONSENT ITEMS
	Minutes of School Board Meeting October 25, 2023
	Personnel Actions - Certificated
	Personnel Actions - Classified
	Personnel Actions - Extracurricular
	Budget Status Report Year Ending August 31, 2023
	Payroll and Vouchers Ending August 31, 2023

	REPORTS & DISCUSSIONS
	Legislative Priorities

	NEW BUSINESS
	Policy No. 2166 INSTRUCTION: Highly Capable Programs
	Policy No. 3131 STUDENTS: Out-of-District (Nonresident or Choice) Student Transfers
	Policy No. 3132 STUDENTS: In-District Transfers - Attendance Boundaries (Resident Students)
	Resolution No. 1, 2023-2024: Collection of Admin Refund Levy for 2024




